KPC 130-05 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF KEDINGTON PARISH COUNCIL TUESDAY 15th OCTOBER 2024 HELD IN THE MEETING ROOM, PARISH COUNCIL OFFICE, ARMS LANE, KEDINGTON

Present: Cllr Ann Naylor (Chair) Cllr Jeffery Potter (Vice Chair) Cllr Terry Wheeler Cllr Ross Standeven Cllr Dean Willett

In attendance: John Boxall (Parish Clerk)

Also in Suffolk County Councillor David Roach

attendance:

ACTION

- 1. Acknowledge agenda items of interest to members of the public present. Mr Richard Geoghegan, Mrs Denise Player and Mr James Player have an interest in agenda item 14.1.a
- 2. Welcome and Apologies.

The Chair welcomed everyone present. Councillors Brooker, Woodward and Woodley are unable to attend for personal reasons. Apologies were accepted by all Councillors present. The West Suffolk Councillors are at a Full Council meeting this evening and can't attend.

Clerk advised that the Council, members of the public and press may audio record, film, photograph or broadcast the meeting, when the press and public are not lawfully excluded. Any member of the public who attends the meeting is advised that the Parish Council cannot control 3rd party recordings. The Parish Council will audio record the meeting.

- 3. To receive members' declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Other Registerable and Non-Registerable Interests in accordance with the Local Government Association Model Councillor Code of Conduct (and section 106 of the LGFA 1992) and receive any applications for dispensations on agenda items. None declared.
- 4. Councillors who were present to agree as a true record the minutes of the meeting of Kedington Parish Council held on 17th September 2024. Councillors confirmed they had received a copy of the draft minutes and had read them.

A resolution was put forward by Cllr Willett and seconded by Cllr Naylor to agree the minutes of the meeting of Kedington Parish Council held on 17^{th} September 2024 as a true record. The resolution

meeting of Kedington Parish Council held on 17th September 2024 as a true record. The resolution was unanimously agreed. Chair signed the minutes outside the meeting.

 5. Receive visitor's reports and reports from District and County Councillors. Chair confirmed that Councillors had received the County Councillor's report by email (ANNEX 1). A District Councillor's report had not been received.

Cllr Roach advised that the Full County Council meeting is on Thursday and that one motion on the agenda is to write to the Chancellor of the Exchequer to ask her to rethink the decision about winter fuel payments.

6. Receive budget statements and any other financial reports and agree any necessary action.

6.1 Review and agree budget statements.

Chair confirmed that Councillors had received the relevant documents.

A resolution was put forward by Cllr Wheeler and seconded by Cllr Standeven to agree the Bank Reconciliation, the Payments and Receipts List, the Net Position by Cost Centre and Code report and the Reserves Balance report (ANNEX 2). The resolution was unanimously agreed.

6.2 PAYE quarterly payment.

Clerk advised that the 2024-2025 Quarter 2 PAYE payment totalling £2,888.88 was made on 10th October 2024 in accordance with Local Government Act 1972 s.111. This is for the Clerk and the Village Cleaner's PAYE and Employee National Insurance contributions and the Parish Council's Employer National Insurance contributions.

6.3 VAT quarterly refund claim.

Clerk advised that the 2024-2025 Quarter 2 VAT claim totalling £1,096.68 was submitted on 3rd October 2024 and was received into the Barclays account on 8th October 2024.

6.4 Dropbox document storage facility annual renewal.

Clerk advised that the Dropbox document storage facility subscription is due for annual renewal by 27th October 2024. Once again it will be £95.88 inc VAT for a year. The annual subscription can only be paid for by debit/credit card or PayPal and the Parish Council has neither of these facilities. As has happened in the previous three years, the Clerk is happy to make the annual payment from his personal account and be refunded the money or to make payment by another means if the Council decides to do so. Payment can be made in accordance with Local Government Act 1972 s.111.

A resolution was put forward by Cllr Willett and seconded by Cllr Wheeler that the Clerk pays the annual subscription of £95.88 and be refunded the money. There were no other resolutions; unanimously agreed.

6.5 Donation to the Poppy Appeal and provision of a Wreath for the Remembrance Day service.

Clerk advised that the Poppy Appeal organisers, Roger and Sue Cornwell, apply to the Royal British Legion head office for a number of wreaths for organisations within the Parish that will want one, normally about 20. They obtain the wreaths for free on the assumption that a donation will be made for the wreath to the Poppy Appeal. Marion Farrant has confirmed that a wreath has been ordered for the Parish Council and she'll drop it off to the Clerk when it's received.

As a Parish Council we have always supported this and made a donation to obtain a wreath for the Chair or a representative of the Council to lay at the Act of Remembrance at the War Memorial. Last year the Parish Council donated £100.00. Clerk advised that this year we have a £100.00 budget for the Poppy Appeal and that Section 138B of the Local Government Act 1972 allows a local authority in England to support such an event.

A resolution was put forward by Cllr Wheeler and seconded by Cllr Standeven to make a payment of £100.00 in total to the Poppy Appeal. There were no other resolutions; unanimously agreed.

6.6 TV licence annual renewal.

Clerk advised that the TV licence for use of the Community Hub is due for its annual renewal by 31st October 2024 for £169.50. Payment can be made on line and in accordance with Local Government Act 1972 s.133.

A resolution was put forward by Cllr Wheeler and seconded by Cllr Potter to pay the annual renewal premium of £169.50. There were no other resolutions; unanimously agreed.

Clerk

ANNEX 2

Clerk

			1
	6.7	Arrange a date for the pre-budget meeting. Clerk advised that this meeting is to discuss the budget for 2025/2026 prior to agreement of it by a resolution at the Parish Council meeting on Tuesday 17 th December 2024 and in time for submission of the Precept application in January 2025. Following a discussion, the meeting was set for Monday 2 nd December 2024 at 1pm.	All Councillors
		agreement of those parishioners who had an interest in agenda item 14.1.a the Chair orward agenda item 14.1.a (see below).	
7.	Grant	S	
	7.1.	Uptakes. Clerk advised there are none.	
	7.2.	Applications.	
		a. 1 st Kedington Brownies. Chair confirmed that Councillors had received the application that the Clerk emailed to them on 11 th October 2024.	
		Clerk advised that payment can be made in accordance with Local Government Act 1972 s.137.	
		Following a discussion amongst Councillors a resolution was put forward by Cllr Wheeler and seconded by Cllr Willett to grant £350.00 to the 1 st Kedington Brownies. There were no other resolutions; unanimously agreed.	Clerk
		 b. St Peter & St Paul Church. Chair confirmed that Councillors had received the application that the Clerk emailed to them on 11th October 2024. 	
		Clerk advised that payment can be made in accordance with Local Government Act 1972 s.137(3)(a), the Church being a charity.	
		A resolution was put forward by Cllr Wheeler and seconded by Cllr Potter to grant £500.00 to the St Peter & St Paul Church towards the cost of the insurance and electricity for this financial year, 2024/2025. There were no other resolutions; unanimously agreed.	Clerk
		c. 2 nd Kedington Rangers. Chair confirmed that Councillors had received the original application that the Clerk emailed to them on 11 th October 2024.	
		Clerk reminded Councillors that at the previous meeting it was agreed that more information was required. Councillors were happy to support the Rangers and grant funds but would like more detail of what the activities and supplies etc. are and how much they would cost. The Councillors also wanted the Rangers to have their own bank account to pay any funds into.	
		Clerk advised that Ella Rowsell had replied to his queries saying that "Now the girls are older, we are very keen to get them doing things that may not be in their normal comfort zone. One of these is to do the indoor skydiving experience in Milton Keynes. The cost for this is £499.99 for the group package for up to 13. This would equate to about £71.42 per girl. We are also hoping to take them away on their own group trip. This hasn't yet been decided where and when yet however we are hoping to be able to offer the trip at a lower price to ensure all girls can attend next year.	
		The money given to us will also go towards the hire of the hall which is around £65 every 6 weeks."	
		Ella also confirmed that the 2 nd Kedington Rangers now has its own bank account.	

Clerk advised that payment can be made in accordance with Local Government Act 1972 s.137.

Following a discussion amongst Councillors a resolution was put forward by Cllr Wheeler and seconded by Cllr Standeven to grant £350.00 to the 2nd Kedington Rangers; unanimously agreed.

8. Clerk's report.

8.1 Remembrance Day Street Parade on Sunday 10th November 2024 update.

Clerk advised that the necessary Temporary Road Closure Order has been obtained from Suffolk County Council who will provide accredited staff to control the traffic. The Order was placed on the Village Stores and Westward Deals noticeboards on Monday 14th October 2024. Cllr Wheeler will be the Parade Coordinator and Kirk Pearson of the Royal British Legion will be the Parade Marshal.

The Parade will once again be followed by the Act of Remembrance at the War Memorial and a Remembrance Service in the Parish Church. After the Church Service refreshments will be available at the Legion Hall courtesy of the Kedington and District Branch.

Those wishing to take part in the Parade should muster off the road in the vicinity of the Barnardiston Arms PH until the roads have been closed to traffic. The Parade will assemble on the highway at 10.20am before moving off at 10.30am under the direction of the Parade Marshal.

Chair advised that Councillors are expected to attend if they can.

8.2 Parish Council office lease update.

Clerk advised that following last month's meeting he had advised Steve Brown by email that:-

- The Council agreed to its "fair proportion" towards KCA costs, including the buildings insurance, being £360.00 pa.
- The Council agreed to the length of notice required for it to terminate the Lease being 6 months.
- The Council agreed to the peppercorn rent being £1.00 per annum.
- The Council has approved the Lease by a resolution once these are added to it.
- As advised by our solicitors, once the Lease is amended and agreed by yourselves, we'll register it at the Land Registry.

Clerk advised that on 26th September 2024 he paid £276.00 inc VAT to Adept Solicitors, this being:-

- £200.00 +VAT for their advice regarding the Lease and the Stamp Duty Land Tax liability and
- £30.00 +VAT for the Chair and Clerk's online identification verification.

On Thursday 10th October 2024 Steve Brown advised the Clerk that once agreed by the Kedington Community Association, the lease will go to their solicitors and they'll provide documents for signing.

Chair advised that the Kedington Community Association's original solicitor has now retired and the new allocated solicitor is reviewing it.

9. Play Equipment.

9.1 Receive defect reports and agree any necessary action.

Chair confirmed that Councillors had received the reports that were received today and emailed to them today. They relate to inspections carried out on 4th October 2024. All findings are low or very low risk so no further action is necessary.

Clerk

All Councillors

10.	Enviro	onmental / Grounds Maintenance matters.	
	10.1	Crown lifts and/or trims to trees on the Cut update. Clerk advised that in an email on 3 rd October 2024 Thurlow Estates have given permission for this work to go ahead.	
		MD Landscapes have conformed they are qualified to carry out the work and have quoted $\pounds150.00$ plus VAT to do so.	
		Clerk advised that payment can be made in accordance with the Open Spaces Act 1906 ss.9 and 10 and can be from the Tree Maintenance budget.	
		A resolution was put forward by Cllr Wheeler and seconded by Cllr Potter to agree this quote. There were no other resolutions; unanimously agreed.	Clerk
	10.2	Discuss cutting back the hedge/trees on the Old School Field that run parallel to the Cut and back onto the old school. Clerk advised that this had been raised by Cllr Wheeler and is for the two sides that face onto Old School Field.	
		MD Landscapes have quoted £150.00 plus VAT to carry out this work.	
		Clerk advised that payment can be made in accordance with the Open Spaces Act 1906 ss.9 and 10 and can be made from the Grounds Extras budget.	
		A resolution was put forward by Cllr Wheeler and seconded by Cllr Willett to agree this quote. There were no other resolutions; unanimously agreed.	Clerk
	10.3	Discuss cutting/strimming back the river banks along the Cut, Watermill Meadow and Silver Street Park. Clerk advised that this had been raised by Cllr Wheeler.	
		MD Landscapes have quoted £650.00 plus VAT to carry out this work.	
		Clerk advised that payment can be made in accordance with the Open Spaces Act 1906 ss.9 and 10 and can be made from the Grounds Extras budget.	
	(A resolution was put forward by Cllr Potter and seconded by Cllr Wheeler to agree this quote. There were no other resolutions; unanimously agreed.	Clerk
11.	Highv	vay/Footpath/Street Furniture matters.	
	11.1	Installing an informal route and picnic benches on Watermill Meadow update. Cllr Willett advised that he has been to Watermill Meadow and his view is that if the informal route has to be more that 8m from the river bank then it's not worth doing, it would be a very short walk. His suggestion is to cut the grass shorter to form a pathway around instead. Cllr Wheeler suggested changing the grass cutting specifications to have it all cut lower. Clerk advised that as these suggestions are not on the agenda for discussion at this meeting he will place it on the agenda for discussion at November's meeting.	Clerk
	11.2	Replacing the wooden picnic benches in the Old School Field with plastic or resin	
		benches update. Cllr Standeven confirmed that the Chair had contacted Haverhill Town Council and they have provided details of the benches they have in the market square. They are from "Realise Futures Eco Furniture". Cllr Standeven provided Councillors with a print out of the benches available on their website.	
		It was suggested that when the wooden picnic benches that are currently on Old School Field are replaced they could be moved to the Watermill Meadow, as agenda item 11.1, to re-use them and save money.	
		It was agreed to look into this again in the spring once the grass cutting starts.	Clerk

11.3 New dog litter bin in Calford Green update

Clerk reminded Councillors that this had previously been raised by former Cllr Bull for Council to consider. Clerk also reminded that West Suffolk Council had asked him to get back to them about it in 3 to 4 months' time as they were just about to introduce new litter/dog bin collection rounds. Clerk has got back to them and they have advised him "We would not currently be able to take on the emptying of any new bins as the current routes do not have capacity."

Following a discussion amongst Councillors it was agreed to take no further action.

11.4 Discuss the installation of a Speed Indicator Device location post on Kings Hill.

Chair advised that she has been contacted by a parishioner who asked if a Speed Indicator Device could be placed on Kings Hill due to the speed of traffic.

Following a discussion amongst Councillors it was agreed that there is no suitable location for a Speed Indicator Device to be located on Kings Hill.

12. Outstanding estimates awaited or work ordered. NONE

13. Any other reports (on-going matters).

13.1 Discuss arranging a Children's Xmas Party.

Chair advised she attended the Kedington Community Association meeting last night and they are happy for the Parish Council to use the Community Centre for a Christmas Party. The Haverhill Santa is only available on Friday 6th December 2024. There can be some traditional games with the children, a disco and some food. The party can be for primary school age children with their parent(s) in attendance. Councillors availability was discussed as was advertising.

Chair to progress and report back.

13.2 Social gathering after Parish Council meeting on 17th December 2024.

Chair suggested and it was agreed that Councillors meet at the Barnardiston Arms PH after that evening's meeting for a social gathering at their own expense. It will be an open invitation to anyone that would like to attend.

13.3 Discuss opening the Community Hub.

Chair advised that she attended the Kedington Community Association meeting last night and the intention is to re-start the Community Hub on Thursday 7th November 2024 for approximately 3 months.

13.4 Local History Recorder update.

Clerk advised that he has been contacted by an interested parishioner and has suggested he contact the Suffolk Local History Council for further information. Clerk provided their contact email details. Clerk also advised that if the parishioner wished to discuss it with him first to please give him a call or pop in to see him. Clerk further advised the parishioner that there is an annual subscription to pay, currently £15.00, but the Parish Council would pay this.

13.4 Kedington Millennium Oak update.

Chair advised that the plaque was blessed by Father Chris on Sunday 13th October 2024. John Brett, his wife and daughter were there as were Peter Deeks and his sons and other parishioners. Chair and Cllr Standeven also attended.

13.6 Kedington Dr's surgery update.

Chair advised that a Dr from the surgery contacted her last Thursday, 10th October 2024, and updated her that the long term plan is to close the surgery and sell it to a developer. It is now only used for the collection of medication on Wednesdays and a delivery service will replace this. The plan is to rent some space in Provisional House on the Haverhill High Street where there will be medically trained staff to take calls. The surgeries in Haverhill and Long Melford, that they have taken over, will have the Doctors and Nurses on site. The Dr will keep the Council updated.

Chair

All Councillors Cllr Standeven asked Chair to ask what will be happening to the defibrillator currently located at the Drs surgery, if it is sold.

14. Housing/Planning.

14.1 Planning applications for discussion at meeting.

a. DC/24/1362/HH - 8 School Road, Kedington – Householder planning application - a. two-storey front extension, b. two-storey rear extension.
 Mr and Mrs Player reside at 8 School Road and have submitted this planning application.
 Mr Geoghegan resides at 6 School Road, the adjoining semi-detached property. Mr Geoghegan has submitted objections to the application to the Planning Officer mainly regarding the size and loss of light. Following an input from both Mrs Player and Mr Geoghegan about their discussion of the application before it was submitted and Mr Geoghegan's objections to it once it had been submitted, and a discussion amongst the Councillors, four of the Councillors had no objections to the application and the fifth had no comment to make on it. The Councillors were happy that any issues could be resolved between the parties and in consultation with the Planning Officer and that they will be able to resolve this application amicably.

14.2 Planning application observations conveyed by the Parish Council.

a. DC/24/1257/FUL - 103 Westward Deals, Kedington - Planning application - construction of driveway with access.

Clerk reminded Councillors that Mr Pyke had submitted an application in 2023 to construct a driveway with access that was subsequently refused. The Planning Officer has advised the Clerk that Mr Pyke appealed the decision but due to a procedural error the appeal deadline was missed. Mr Pyke was however able to resubmit the application and this agenda item is the resubmission of that application. The Planning Officer has confirmed that the application is the same as it was previously and that if it wishes to do so, the Parish Council can resubmit the same objections as it did previously.

Clerk had then consulted with the Councillors and they confirmed that the original objections should be resubmitted.

Clerk advised that the original objections to this application were resubmitted on 10th October 2024, the last day on which he could do so prior to the consultation expiry date of 11th October 2024.

14.3 Planning applications decisions received from the District Council. NONE

15. Date and location of next Parish Council meeting.

Clerk advised the next Parish Council meeting will be held on Tuesday 19th November 2024 at 7pm in the Parish Council Office Meeting Room.

The meeting closed at 8:31 p.m.

Signed Date.....

Clerk

Chair

ANNEX 1

September 2024 Town and Parish Newsletter

For more information on all stories visit: <u>Suffolk County Council | Conservative Group (suffolkconservatives.org.uk)</u>

Contents

Page 4 - Suffolk adults urged to take up potential life-saving opportunity

People across Suffolk aged between 40 and 74, who don't have a pre-existing health condition, are being encouraged to take-up a potentially life-saving opportunity.

Page 4 - **OPINION: Lowestoft's Gull Wing bridge is a new landmark for all of Suffolk** Column by Cllr Matthew Hicks, Leader of Suffolk County Council.

Page 6 - Uncertainty looms for 177,000 Suffolk residents currently eligible for winter fuel payments

As many as 177,000 Suffolk residents are currently eligible for winter fuel payments and should be protected from Government plans to cut the allowance, Suffolk County Council has warned.

Page 7 - Energy projects and the wellbeing of communities

Suffolk County Council has produced guidance to help protect the wellbeing of local communities impacted by large Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs).

Page 8 - Window now open to apply for primary and secondary school places

Parents and carers can now apply for a place in the normal year of entry at a primary (including infant and junior) school and secondary school for September 2025.

Page 9 - £500 million investment in Suffolk scrapped by Government

Suffolk's proposed in principle devolution deal, which would bring more than £500 million to the county over 30 years, has been scrapped by the Government.

Page 10 - Council's actions bring hope to local communities despite pylon project approval

Suffolk County Council is confident that details announced in today's approval of National Grid's Bramford to Twinstead pylon project, will have significant implications on other Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs) across the country.

Page 11 - Public asked to comment on plans to expand Mildenhall Academy

Members of the public are being encouraged to have their say on plans to expand Mildenhall Academy.

Page 12 - Second abnormal load rescheduled for Suffolk

On Sunday 6th of October, the second abnormal load which was previously postponed by the haulier, Allelys, will be transported from Ipswich Docks.

Page 14 - Newmarket recycling centre future in discussion

Suffolk County Council continues to explore a solution to provide a recycling facility in Newmarket.

Page 15 - Plans unveiled for A12 Major Road Network improvements in East Suffolk

Suffolk County Council has unveiled its proposals for improvements to the A12 in East Suffolk, between the A14 Seven Hills junction and A1152 Woods Lane in Melton.

Page 16 - Up to £2.5 million in funding available for agrifood innovators

Suffolk organisations are invited to apply for a share of up to £2.5 million in grant funding for business-led agrifood projects in Eastern England.

Page 17 - Suffolk County Council launches £500,000 Culture Project Fund to Boost cultural activity across the county

Suffolk County Council announced the launch of its new £500,000 Culture Project Fund. This initiative is aimed at strengthening and supporting local arts and museum projects in our local communities across the county.

Page 18 - Relief at flood defence funding announcement

Suffolk County Council has welcomed news that a £25 million investment will enable flood defence works at Benacre to be fully completed.

Page 19 - OPINION: The right project in the right place can bring benefits to our economy

Column by Cllr Richard Rout, Suffolk County Council's Deputy Cabinet Member for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects.

Suffolk adults urged to take up potential life-saving opportunity

People across Suffolk aged between 40 and 74, who don't have a pre-existing health condition, are being encouraged to take-up a potentially life-saving opportunity.

The call to action comes after Suffolk GP Federation were awarded a contract to deliver over 23,000 NHS Health Checks in the county annually.

Suffolk County Council have also become one of 45 local authorities in England to receive funding from the government as part of the national Workplace Cardiovascular Disease Health Check Pilot. Working with Suffolk GP Federation 2,000 additional NHS Health Checks will be delivered in workplaces in the county by March 2025.

NHS Health Checks play a really important role in preventing disease and helping people live healthier lives for longer. They can be lifesaving as they help spot increased risk of stroke, kidney disease, heart disease, type 2 diabetes, and dementia early, before the conditions develop. They also give people an opportunity to talk to a health care professional about how to reduce their risk.

Cllr Steve Wiles, Cabinet Member for Public Health and Public Protection at Suffolk County Council, said:

"NHS Health Checks are an important tool in spotting health conditions early and helping people become more aware of what they can do to improve their health and wellbeing in the future. Prevention is always better than cure and I encourage residents who are invited for a free health check to make an appointment as soon as possible."

"I am also delighted we received additional funding to provide workplace checks. This will help us to gather evidence on the feasibility and impact of delivering health checks in targeted workplaces and, in doing so, help more people live well for longer."

For more information about the Suffolk NHS Health Check Service visit <u>the Suffolk GP Federation</u> <u>website</u>.

OPINION: Lowestoft's Gull Wing bridge is a new landmark for all of Suffolk

Column by Cllr Matthew Hicks, Leader of Suffolk County Council.

Thousands of Lowestoft residents made history on Saturday as they walked, wheeled and drove for the first time across the town's new, world-leading and unique Gull Wing bridge.

Built on behalf of Suffolk County Council by leading civil engineering contractor Farrans, the Gull Wing heralds a new era for Lowestoft and promises to bring both immediate and long-term benefits to the town, its businesses and residents.

A new bridge such as this doesn't just happen overnight, and whilst its design may be modern, and its construction techniques and materials state of the art, this bridge's history and political genesis dates back decades, and I want to pay tribute and thank all those who, over the years, have played their part in making the Gull Wing possible.

Last week, I was fortunate enough to speak to Clifford Smith, the first Chief Executive of Suffolk County Council, whose previous role was County Planner. Clifford described to me the efforts he went through 60 years ago to try and secure a third crossing in Lowestoft. Thank you, Clifford, for your vision back in 1964, which undoubtedly laid the foundations for the Gull Wing bridge.

Of course, it would be decades later before this project received the nod of approval from the government. I must thank Peter Aldous who, in his former role as Member of Parliament for Lowestoft, showed tenacity and Herculean determination that, come what may, a third crossing in Lowestoft must happen. I remember well when Peter invited the then Prime Minister, David Cameron, to Lowestoft in April 2015, and when the Prime Minister committed the government to helping to fund a bridge in the town. Many doubted it would happen – well, those who doubted Peter's determination and Lord Cameron's promise can now see it clearly. Thank you, Peter for staying true to your word, and thank you, Lord Cameron, for giving it your enthusiastic backing.

I also want to thank my predecessors at Suffolk County Council, Mark Bee and Colin Noble, and all the various cabinet members who grasped the opportunity offered by the government and enthusiastically gave this project their backing.

Then, there was the decision on what route the new bridge should take. Bob Blizzard is no longer with us, but I want to pay tribute to him today because the very route it takes owes much to his lobbying and campaigning.

I want to thank Farrans for their work as our construction partner in this project. Even with the challenges of a global pandemic and foreign wars disrupting supply and energy chains, you, and your army of excellent sub-contractors, have delivered this bridge for the people of Lowestoft.

I want to thank Bam Nuttall and Arup for producing such a stunning, iconic design. This is not just a bridge. This is a new landmark for Suffolk, of which we are all proud.

I want to thank Oilgear, Eadon, Ardent, Victor Buyck, Javlin, Quinn, TJ Edwards Steel and Associate British Ports. I want to say a special thank you to local Lowestoft contractors LEC Marine and Sharp Contract and Surveying, as well as DPL from Ipswich. I know I will have missed some businesses in the limited space I have, but I hope you are all proud of this new bridge for Lowestoft, which will serve the town for decades to come.

Finally, I want to thank Simon Bretherton, Suffolk County Council's Gull Wing Project Director, and his team for managing this bridge into reality. Building something of this scale - the largest of its kind in the world - was never going to be easy, but you did it brilliantly. Thank you all.

It was wonderful to see so many local people turn out on Saturday to be part of a momentous occasion for Lowestoft. I hope that many will return for the civic opening ceremony on Tuesday 19th November.

The people of Lowestoft have waited decades for a third river crossing. I am proud that the Gull Wing is now open and I look forward to seeing the positive impact it will have on our community. The Gull Wing truly is a promise made, and a promise delivered.

Uncertainty looms for 177,000 Suffolk residents currently eligible for winter fuel payments

As many as 177,000 Suffolk residents are currently eligible for winter fuel payments and should be protected from Government plans to cut the allowance, Suffolk County Council has warned.

According to 2023 mid-year population estimates from the ONS, around 177,000 people over the age of 66 in Suffolk are eligible for these crucial payments, leaving them potentially vulnerable if they are withdrawn.

In response, Suffolk County Council's leader, Councillor Matthew Hicks, has written to all of the county's MPs - urging them to vote against the proposed changes. The council is particularly concerned that rural areas, like much of Suffolk, will be disproportionately affected due to reliance on expensive oil heating and the added burden of rural deprivation.

Rural homes are statistically less energy efficient compared to urban homes, meaning they require more energy to maintain a healthy temperature. Furthermore, many rural homes are not connected to mains gas, forcing households to rely on more costly heating sources like wood, canister gas, or oil. The price of heating oil has now risen to 66p per litre, a 12p increase since 2020.

Councillor Matthew Hicks, Leader of Suffolk County Council, said:

"The removal of winter fuel payments will have a devastating impact on many of our residents, particularly those living in rural areas. With homes in these locations often being less energy efficient and lacking access to mains gas, they rely on expensive alternatives like oil and wood. This, combined with the rising cost of heating oil, is putting increased financial pressure on households.

"Winter fuel payments provide a lifeline for many, and we urge Suffolk MPs to vote against any changes that would leave our most vulnerable without this crucial support."

Energy projects and the wellbeing of communities

Suffolk County Council has produced guidance to help protect the wellbeing of local communities impacted by large Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs).

The new document - <u>Community Engagement and Wellbeing Supplementary Guidance</u> - complements the council's Energy and Climate Adaptive Infrastructure Policy, and is aimed at project promoters, parish councils and local communities.

Research by Suffolk Mind, and the experiences of the county council, show that the wellbeing of local residents and communities suffers when NSIPs are proposed in a local area, especially when multiple projects are on the table.

Feelings of fear, mistrust, anger, and frustration are all reported, along with impacted sleep, and inability to plan for the future, due to the uncertainty created by the proposed development.

The new guidance stresses the importance and value for project promoters of an NSIP to collaborate with local communities from the early proposal stages, through to life after construction, to protect the wellbeing of those local communities.

Councillor Richard Rout, Suffolk County Council's Deputy Cabinet Member for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects, said:

"So often we see project promoters doing the bare statutory minimum to engage with local communities, through a few local events and consultations.

"This is never enough, and in fact doesn't do the promoter any favours in the long run. I believe they could often do a far better job working with local residents, parish councils and community leaders, throughout the process but particularly following approval if a project is given the go ahead by government.

"An NSIP can cause stress, insecurity and anxiety amongst communities, particular for local community leaders who bear a burden of responsibility, often with little experience of the technicalities and enormity of such complex planning applications.

"A promoter simply informing communities is one thing, but there is a real opportunity to empower them – but promoters need to show a commitment to healthy, continuous engagement, and help local communities to understand their project, feel listened to and feel included in its progress.

"This new guidance won't stop us standing up to project promoters, fighting for a fair deal for Suffolk and, where necessary, objecting to a scheme. However, if promoters listen to our recommendations it should markedly improve the experience, and wellbeing, of local communities whether a scheme is approved or refused."

The cumulative effect of NSIPs has resulted in considerable impacts on the wellbeing of individuals, the overall wellbeing of the community, and has also led to feelings of lost identity.

One member of the public described how the association with the energy projects has "created a perception that the nature of our village and parish... has been completely altered, and is now one to be defined by the presence of large industrial complexes, rather than what it actually is, a

rural community... it remains a small rural village, with living breathing people, who strive to protect its unique quality."

The document provides a framework for promoters to follow, to help them understand their project's impact on the wellbeing of local communities, and what they can actively do to mitigate it.

Window now open to apply for primary and secondary school places

Parents and carers can now apply for a place in the normal year of entry at a primary (including infant and junior) school and secondary school for September 2025.

The deadline for applications to secure a place at a secondary school is Thursday 31 October 2024 and for primary school places, including infant and junior schools, the deadline is Wednesday 15 January 2025.

All applications received by the relevant closing date are processed at the same time using the schools' oversubscription criteria to prioritise applications when necessary. Late applications are processed after all of those received on time.

Last year, Suffolk County Council received just under 15,000 on time applications for pupils wishing to start at a primary or infant school, or to transfer to a junior school, or into Year 7 at a secondary school from September 2024.

94.7% of applicants received offers for their first preference school and 98.5% of applicants received an offer for one of their top three preferred schools.

Councillor Andrew Reid, Suffolk County Council's Cabinet Member for Education and SEND, said:

"Parents and carers need to carefully consider which schools to apply for on behalf of their child. To make sure they have the best chance of getting a place at one of their preferred schools, they need to make sure they complete and submit their application by the relevant closing date. We recommend that parents and carers apply for more than one school, and they can list up to three schools on their application." "I would strongly advise that parents and carers think about how their child will travel to school before they apply for a school place. It is important that parents and carers check which is their child's nearest suitable school on our Nearest School Checker because this might not be their catchment area school. This can be found at <u>http://nearestschool.suffolk.gov.uk/</u>."

Further information on SCC's School Travel Policy can be found at <u>www.suffolkonboard.com/schooltravel.</u>

Parents and carers should apply online at <u>www.suffolk.gov.uk/admissions</u> as they will receive confirmation that their application has been received. If for any reason they are unable to apply online they should apply on a paper application (CAF1). Suffolk County Council is unable to acknowledge receipt of paper applications and therefore suggest that proof of posting is obtained.

If families are planning to move house or think their circumstances may change before next September, it is still important to make an application on time using the current address. It is recommended to apply for schools based on the current address in case the proposed move falls through. Advice and guidance about this process is available at <u>www.suffolk.gov.uk/admissions</u>. Families who apply online will be able to log on to the Online Service on the National Offer Day, which is Monday 3 March 2025 for secondary school places and Wednesday 16 April 2025 for primary school places, to see their offer of a school place, and they will receive an email to confirm this offer on the same day. Offer letters will be sent by second class post to applicants who made a paper application.

Information to help parents and carers make their application is available at <u>www.suffolk.gov.uk/admissions</u>.

£500 million investment in Suffolk scrapped by Government

Suffolk's proposed in principle devolution deal, which would bring more than £500 million to the county over 30 years, has been scrapped by the Government.

The additional funding – which would come with new local decision-making powers over areas including housing, transport, adult education and regeneration – is no longer being offered to Suffolk. The deal would mean local people who know and love Suffolk would be empowered to make more decisions about the county's future, rather than people in Whitehall.

Key aspects of the deal included:

- Control of a new investment fund worth £480m over the next thirty years
- Local control of the Adult Education Budget each year (worth £9.4m in 2025/26)
- £5.8m one-off funding to prepare brownfield sites for development
- Multi-year transport funding plus an additional £500,000 over two years to finalise Suffolk's Local Transport Plan
- The leader of Suffolk County Council would be directly elected by the people of Suffolk rather than by county councillors.

Most people who responded to an independent survey, run by Ipsos, were in favour of the proposed deal. 63% of people supported or strongly supported it while 7% disagreed. 21% of people were unsure. In a separate but linked poll run by Suffolk County Council, 49% of people who responded supported or strongly supported the deal, whilst 40% did not and 11% were unsure.

Suffolk County Councillors were expected to vote on the deal after the General Election in July.

Cllr Matthew Hicks, Leader of Suffolk County Council, said:

"This feels like a real slap in the face for Suffolk from a Government that won't listen to what local people are saying. First, they waved through the Sunnica application, showing little regard for the communities affected. Then, they scrapped the winter fuel payments, which will adversely affect older people living in rural areas. Now, our proposed devolution deal – which has widespread public support – is in the bin.

"Governments of any colour should be pro devolution because councils know how best to serve local people. Local councillors have now been stripped of the opportunity to support or reject the proposed deal which is a sad day for democracy by any measure."

Council's actions bring hope to local communities despite pylon project approval

Suffolk County Council is confident that details announced in today's approval of National Grid's Bramford to Twinstead pylon project, will have significant implications on other Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs) across the country.

The application was approved on 12 September 2024 by the Rt Hon Ed Miliband MP, Secretary of State for Energy Security and Net Zero.

Despite objecting to the Bramford to Twinstead pylon application, the county council's influence throughout the process has led to the Secretary of State acknowledging the importance of the role of local authorities - by requiring their approval of National Grid's detailed construction and environmental management plans as part of the process prior to work starting.

Following points made by the county council during the examination process, the Secretary of State has agreed that National Grid should not wield so much control over the delivery of the project, recognising instead that local authorities are integral to the proper and fair delivery of NSIPs.

Councillor Richard Rout, Suffolk County Council's Deputy Cabinet Member for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects, said:

"Whilst not a perfect proposal, and one which the council did feel the need object to, I'm pleased with this council's influence in setting some precedents for future infrastructure projects.

"The recognition of the role of this council, and others like us, sends a strong message to National Grid and other project promoters, that they cannot just do as they wish.

"My hope is that other projects sit up and take note – protecting local communities is of paramount importance, something we continually fight for."

The county council had formally objected to the application, concluding that National Grid had failed to adequately safeguard Suffolk's environment and communities affected by the scheme. It felt that proposals did not go far enough to mitigate the impact of the scheme, and that supervision of construction would be inadequate.

There were disappointments in the approval decision, such as working hours to include weekends and bank holidays. However, certain locations will be exempt from these hours, which is encouraging for other communities where NSIPs are yet to be approved.

Cllr Rout continues:

"Although we would still prefer to see better mitigations with this project, I feel this is a step in the right direction and hopefully sees an end to project promoters thinking they can have a freefor-all approach and ignore local authorities.

"With such a barrage of projects from solar farms to pylons, substations to interconnectors, all wanting a piece of Suffolk, it is our duty to stand with our communities to protect our residents, businesses and our historic, beautiful and environmentally-rich county."

The project will see 18 km of overhead lines and around 11 km of underground cable through the Dedham Vale National Landscape and in the Stour Valley.

Public asked to comment on plans to expand Mildenhall Academy

Members of the public are being encouraged to have their say on plans to expand Mildenhall Academy.

A public consultation opens today (Monday 16th Sept) into plans to build seven new classrooms, offices and additional dining space at the school in Sheldrake Way, Mildenhall. The plans can be viewed online.

The extension, which is due to open in January 2026, will replace the modular units currently on the school site. Pupil numbers will not increase.

Cllr Andrew Reid, Cabinet Member for Education and SEND at Suffolk County Council, said:

"This extension will make a significant difference to pupils and staff at Mildenhall Academy.

"I'd encourage those in the community to view the plans and, if you'd like, submit your comments."

Suffolk County Council is working with Concertus Design & Property to deliver the plans.

To comment, visit <u>www.suffolk.gov.uk/consultations.</u> The consultation will close on September 30. You can also comment via email to <u>schools@suffolk.gov.uk</u>

Draft plans will also be displayed at the entrance to the Mildenhall Hub.

Second abnormal load rescheduled for Suffolk

On Sunday 6th of October, the second abnormal load which was previously postponed by the haulier, Allelys, will be transported from Ipswich Docks.

Allelys has been working with Suffolk Highways, National Highways, Suffolk Police, as well as J McCann and Swarco to reschedule the abnormal load movement, on behalf of Conrad Energy and National Grid.

A 164-tonne transformer, which is being transported on a vehicle measuring 71 metres in length, will depart from Ipswich Docks at approximately 6am on Sunday, starting its journey to the Synchronous Condenser Plant in Yaxley.

To support future abnormal loads, since 2021, Suffolk Highways has been replacing permanent street furniture such as safety railings, road signs and traffic signals with easily removable versions. This has since proven to limit the amount of work and disruption required during the lead up to abnormal load movements.

Teams will be leading and following the vehicle to prepare the route, temporarily removing and reinstating street furniture. This will enable the load to be transported safely whilst keeping disruption to a minimum.

A temporary road closure of the A140 will be necessary whilst the load moves to its destination. A temporary overbridge at Brockford will be installed to protect the roads and structure.

Once the load has safely passed the overbridge and the road is deemed safe for public use, the overbridge will be dismantled in readiness for when the A140 can be reopened. The closure could be in place for several hours from late morning. Whilst the A140 is closed, between A14 and A1120, access to smaller vehicles will be allowed to cross from East to West and vice versa. However, this will be subject to the position of the abnormal load at the time.

Other restrictions will also be in place, such as parking and weight limit restrictions, the suspension of any double yellow lines along the route and the closure of Derby Road, Tomline Road, and the St Matthews Street subway, in Ipswich. Old Norwich Road, Ipswich and Old Norwich Road, Whitton will also have parking restrictions as a contingency route in the unlikely event that the move needs to be spread over two weekends.

To allow the load to navigate safely around permanent street furniture on the day of the move, the load will be travelling on the opposite side of the carriageway at times. Traffic Management teams will be leading the load, whilst Suffolk Police will manage traffic. Mid-morning, traffic on the A14 eastbound will be temporary held whilst the load travels the wrong way from the Whitehouse Interchange (jct. no. 53) to the A140 Interchange (jct. no. 52).

The Suffolk Police enforced rolling roadblock on the A14 eastbound is anticipated to be in place between approximately 10am and 10.30am. The A140 is expected to be closed from approximately 11am until 6pm; however, these timings will be subject to change.

To limit the impact on the travelling public, there may be temporary stop points along the route to support with minimising congestion.

Councillor Paul West, Suffolk County Council's cabinet member for Ipswich, operational highways and flooding, said:

"It is good news that Suffolk Highways has been able to facilitate the rescheduled abnormal load move. The team will continue to support future abnormal loads ensuring these are carried out safely and with minimal impact on Suffolk's residents."

Whilst the restrictions and road closures are in place, road users are encouraged to avoid the area where possible to ensure disruption is kept to a minimum.

Newmarket recycling centre future in discussion

Suffolk County Council continues to explore a solution to provide a recycling facility in Newmarket.

However, the challenge is now much more difficult following the cancellation of Suffolk's County Deal by the government last week.

The recycling centre on Depot Road has been closed since 2018 when current permit holders, Newmarket Open Door, ceased operations citing that it was no longer a financially viable venture.

Last week the government cancelled Suffolk's devolution deal, or 'County Deal', which included an additional £16 million per year for the next thirty years.

Councillor Chris Chambers, Suffolk County Council's Cabinet Member for Transport Strategy, Planning and Waste, said:

"Suffolk County Council has always had the ambition to find a solution for a recycling centre for Newmarket's residents. We have been working together with West Suffolk Council on this for some time. However, one of the main avenues open to us as a county council was the use of funds attached to Suffolk's County Deal. That opportunity has now been wrenched from us, and from Newmarket residents, by the government.

"This is a big setback, and whilst the county council will continue to try and explore options with Newmarket Open Door to retain the Environmental Permit, which is needed to operate a recycling centre, the government's decision last week has made those efforts very difficult indeed.

"What is even more disappointing is that Cllr Waterman personally led the efforts of District and Borough councils against the County Deal by orchestrating a letter to Government urging them to bin it, abandoning all the progress made, and throwing away the half-a-billion pounds worth of investment that the deal would have brought to the whole of Suffolk, including Newmarket.

"This is part of a growing theme of the new government letting Suffolk residents down. West Suffolk Council pulled out of our joint legal challenge to the Sunnica Solar Farm, while the government has cut Winter Fuel Payments to tens of thousands of Suffolk pensioners and now stopped £500m investment in our county."

Discussions will continue for the county council to look at feasible options to provide a recycling service in Newmarket.

Plans unveiled for A12 Major Road Network improvements in East Suffolk

Suffolk County Council has unveiled its proposals for improvements to the A12 in East Suffolk, between the A14 Seven Hills junction and A1152 Woods Lane in Melton.

The A12 is a key route in East Suffolk, linking Ipswich and Lowestoft and provides an important connection for local communities and visitors, as well as access to the Energy Coast.

The scheme is designed to upgrade key junctions on the A12, between the A14 at Seven Hills and the A1152 at Woods Lane. These proposals would help to tackle congestion, provide space for future growth and improve conditions for all road users including pedestrians and cyclists.

The scheme introduces a new dual carriageway at Seckford Hall between the B1438 and B1079. It also enhances bus journeys and improves local walking and cycling connections, including a widened overbridge at Martlesham Heath.

Councillor Chris Chambers, Suffolk County Council's cabinet member for transport strategy, planning and waste, said:

"I am delighted to see this important project progressing closer to delivery. The county council is firmly committed to delivering on these improvements, which look set to provide major benefits to all those travelling between our two largest towns, Ipswich and Lowestoft.

"Following public consultation back in 2021 and a commitment of government funding last year, we are now in a position to share our detailed designs and proposals with residents.

"These improvements will provide greater access to the east coast, an area with several Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs) including Sizewell C, easing congestion and network disruption during its construction. I encourage residents to take a look at the plans, read up on the benefits and let us know their thoughts."

The local community and users of the A12 are encouraged to take part and share their feedback until Tuesday 29 October 2024. The community is invited to attend any of the three in-person events to learn more about the scheme and speak to a member of the project team.

- Thursday 26 September, 5:30pm 8:30pm Woodbridge Community Hall, Woodbridge
- Saturday 28 September, 2:00pm 5:00pm Martlesham Community Hall, Martlesham
- Tuesday 1 October, 4:00pm 7:00pm Shire Hall, Woodbridge

There will also be a virtual event on **Tuesday 8 October, 6:30pm – 7:30pm.** This event will be hosted on Microsoft Teams. You can register to attend this event, <u>here</u>.

To find out more about the proposals and how to submit your feedback, visit: **www.suffolk.gov.uk/A12MRN**.

Up to £2.5 million in funding available for agrifood innovators

Suffolk organisations are invited to apply for a share of up to £2.5 million in grant funding for business-led agrifood projects in Eastern England. Two new competitions have been launched as part of Innovate UK's Eastern England Launchpad, a partnership between Innovate UK, Suffolk

County Council, Greater Lincolnshire LEP, Norfolk County Council, and Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Combined Authority. The Launchpad aims to boost innovation in the region's agri-tech and food technology sectors while strengthening its reputation as a top hub for food production and sustainability.

The competitions offer a share of up to £2.5 million in two strands:

- The first competition, 'MFA', is open to micro, small and medium sized businesses. Grants between £25,000 and £100,000 are available for projects lasting 6 to 12 months.
- The second competition is for collaborative research and development (CR&D) projects. Applications can be led by businesses of any size and consortia must include at least one small or medium enterprise. Grants between £150,000 and £300,000 are available for projects lasting 6 to 18 months.

The competitions open on Monday 23rd September and will close at 11am on 6th November 2024. For more information and to apply, visit <u>https://www.gov.uk/apply-funding-innovation</u>

Projects can focus on one or more of the following themes:

- enhancing the productivity of primary crops, livestock, aquaculture or ornamental crops
- biotechnologies related to agriculture, aquaculture, food processing and nutrition
- food that promotes safe, lower carbon or more sustainable healthy and nutritious diets
- resource efficient production and processing methods for low emission foods.

Cllr Richard Smith MVO, Suffolk County Council's Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance, Economic Development and Skills, said:

"These competitions offer an exciting opportunity for local businesses and researchers to build on the region's strong reputation as a leader in fresh produce, meat, poultry, fish and seafood processing. With the largest food logistics sector in the UK, a thriving drinks and convenience food industry, and many niche and specialty food producers, Eastern England is the perfect place for this kind of innovation.

"If you think this funding could benefit your project, I encourage you to apply."

Suffolk County Council launches £500,000 Culture Project Fund to Boost cultural activity across the county

Suffolk County Council is pleased to announce the launch of its new £500,000 Culture Project Fund. This initiative is aimed at strengthening and supporting local arts and museum projects in our local communities across the county.

This fund's goal is to improve the cultural landscape in Suffolk, benefiting communities through diverse and impactful initiatives that align with the council's key priorities: health and wellbeing, economic development, environmental protection, and value for money.

The fund offers three tiers of grants: Small grants up to £1,500 Medium grants up to £15,000 Large grants up to £50,000 This inclusive approach ensures that both grassroots ventures and larger, more established organisations have equal opportunities to access funding. Eligible applicants include Arts and Museum organisations, skilled freelancers, registered charities, community interest companies, non-profits, and social enterprises based in Suffolk.

The fund supports both capital and revenue projects, with a maximum of £25,000 available for capital expenditure.

Councillor Philip Faircloth-Mutton Suffolk County Council's Cabinet Member for Environment, Communities and Equality, said:

"The launch of the Culture Project Fund marks a significant investment in the future of Suffolk's cultural sector. By supporting projects that focus on our key priorities, we aim to create happier, healthier, and stronger communities.

"This fund is about more than just arts and culture, it's about building resilience, fostering inclusion, and boosting the wellbeing of our residents. We're excited to see the positive impact these projects will have on our county."

The culture project fund will support projects that have been designed to reach, engage and inspire people and communities to take part in and enjoy arts and museums. The fund is particularly to support projects that reach some of our most vulnerable people and communities with an application process that is streamlined and accessible. This includes activities designed for those on low incomes, isolated individuals, and marginalised groups, the fund aims to support projects that enhance both mental and physical health, creating resilience and improving overall wellbeing through inclusive and accessible activities.

Furthermore, the fund aims to strengthen Suffolk's economy by supporting projects that enhance skills development, promote social enterprises, and attract visitors. By focusing on these areas, the Council seeks to foster a thriving cultural sector that contributes to the county's growth.

Key Dates:

Fund opens for applications: Monday 23 September 2024 Medium and Large grant applications deadline: Friday 29 November 2024 Medium and Large grants awarded by: Friday 14 February 2025 Small grant presentations: Monday 17 March, Monday 14 July, and Monday 15 September 2025.

Relief at flood defence funding announcement

Suffolk County Council has welcomed news that a £25 million investment will enable flood defence works at Benacre to be fully completed.

A timeline of images showing how the coast is eroding and the need for the scheme. (1985 image courtesy of Mike Page / 2018 image courtesy of Edward Vere Nicholl, Benacre Estates)

<u>The contribution is coming from Sizewell C</u>, which will now mean that the Benacre and Kessingland flood risk management project can go ahead.

Overall project funding of £59 million is being committed to the project by DEFRA and a range of other organisations. The county council itself plans to commit £2 million to the scheme, an amount

already earmarked from reserves, and will go before Cabinet for approval at its meeting on 8 October 2024.

If the scheme did not go ahead, it is estimated that the economic impact would run into the hundreds of millions of pounds, just from the flooding of the A12 alone. There would be significant costs to the county council from having to manage regular road closures, to delivering an alternative long-term solution to protect the A12.

Councillor Richard Rout, Suffolk County Council's Deputy Cabinet Member for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects, said:

"This is great news on so many levels. The defences against flooding will protect the A12, dozens of local homes, hundreds of acres of farmland and give security to the local economy and tourism. The chosen solution will also create hundreds of acres of valuable inter-tidal habitat for wildlife and people to enjoy.

"Doing nothing was simply not an option. If this scheme did not go ahead, the impacts would be genuinely catastrophic. The A12 would flood up to twice a day with the tides, essentially cutting the east of the county in two.

"For those that maybe don't travel around this northern part of the county, imagine your nearest A-road being cut off twice a day for hours at a time, with all the additional pressures and complications that would bring.

"This is evidence that the right infrastructure project in the right place can bring huge benefits to a local area and its economy, much like the Gull Wing bridge which we have just delivered up the road in Lowestoft."

Preliminary work on flood defences has been underway at the site, near the A12 at Benacre sluice close to Lowestoft, which is close to being breached. This is work is being led by the Waveney, Lower Yare & Lothingland Internal Drainage Board, supported by the Environment Agency to safeguard the area for now and long into the future.

The new investment will mean that the full project can be completed, with construction expected to begin in Spring 2025.

OPINION: The right project in the right place can bring benefits to our economy

Column by Cllr Richard Rout, Suffolk County Council's Deputy Cabinet Member for Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects.

The flooding scheme superimposed in the valley with the A12 in the background (Credit: Edward Vere Nicholl, Benacre Estates)

Looking out of my window as I write this, trying to make out the Birmingham skyline through the raindrops running down the pane (I'm here for the Conservative Party Conference), I think we can confidently say that the last knockings of summer are behind us. We are now truly ensconced in autumn, and probably sooner than we'd like, winter.

Some of our communities know too well the impacts that the rain can cause in terms of flooding, and the county council continues to work hard on mitigating these effects.

But it is a different type of flooding I wanted to highlight today – the kind that emanates from the sea.

Although I live in a more land-locked part of Suffolk, I enjoy regular trips to the coast, whether for work or for pleasure. From Felixstowe in the south to Lowestoft in the north, and the multitude of spots in-between, we are a haven for coastal-related tourism, commerce and industry.

Suffolk really is a special place in this respect, bringing holiday-makers from around the country, whilst being recognised as a crucial player in securing the nation's low carbon energy future – regular readers will be familiar with the council's on-going challenges to solar farms, pylons and all the associated infrastructure, as we work hard to protect our communities.

But part of our coastline at Benacre, near Lowestoft, is under imminent threat from the sea. Preliminary work on flood defences has been underway at the site, near the A12 at Benacre sluice, which is close to being breached. Agencies have been working hard on immediate flood prevention measures, but a much bigger project is needed to protect the area.

If nothing is done, dozens of local homes and hundreds of acres of farmland will be under severe threat in the very near future. The A12 would flood up to twice a day with the tides, essentially cutting the east of the county in two.

Left unattended, the repercussions would be catastrophic. There would be significant costs to the county council alone, from having to manage regular road closures, to delivering an alternative long-term solution to protect the A12.

So what is being done?

The good news is that the Benacre and Kessingland Managed Realignment Scheme has been drawn up. It's a £59 million project to be funded by a range of organisations, including a planned £2 million from county council, which has already been earmarked in our budget, and will be put before Cabinet next week for approval.

The final piece of the jigsaw came with yesterday's news that Sizewell C will commit £25 million to the project, meaning that all funding is now in place, and work is expected begin in the Spring next year.

This is great news on so many levels. The new defences against flooding will protect the A12, local homes, farmland and give security to the local economy and tourism. It will also create hundreds of acres of valuable inter-tidal habitat for wildlife and people to enjoy.

It will create a new 82-hectare saltmarsh which will provide a habitat for sea-fish, invertebrates, wading birds and a wide range of other wildlife. It will improve 52 kilometres of local rivers and protect 11 million cubic metres of local freshwater from the encroachment of sea water. The area will be open to walkers, bird watchers and nature lovers, giving a boost to local tourism.

Doing nothing was simply not an option. If this scheme did not go ahead, the impacts would not bear thinking about – particular around the flooding of the A12.

If you don't have cause to travel around that northern part of the county, imagine your nearest Aroad being cut off twice a day for hours at a time, with all the additional pressures and complications that would bring.

I am genuinely delighted that this project can make its way to the finishing line. Much like the Gull Wing bridge which we have just delivered up the road in Lowestoft, it goes to show that not all infrastructure projects are divisive and controversial - the right project in the right place can bring huge benefits to a local area and its economy.

ANNEX 2

Kedington	Darieh	Council
Realington	Parisi	Council

Date: Prepared by: Name and Role (Clerk/RFO etc) Approved by: Date: Name and Role (RFO/Chair of Finance etc) Bank Reconciliation at 11/10/2024 Cash in Hand 01/04/2024 82,553.72 ADD Receipts 01/04/2024 - 11/10/2024 94,129.23 176,682.95 SUBTRACT Payments 01/04/2024 - 11/10/2024 45,701.48 Cash in Hand 11/10/2024 130,981.47 Α (per Cash Book) Cash in hand per Bank Statements Petty Cash 11/10/2024 0.00 Natwest Bank - Kedington Parish | 11/10/2024 86,523.72 Barclays - Kedington Parish Counc 11/10/2024 44,457.75 130,981.47 Less unpresented payments 130,981.47 Plus unpresented receipts Adjusted Bank Balance 130,981,47 в A = B Checks out OK

11 October 2024 (2024-2025)

Groma by []] Scribe

Kedington Parish Council PAYMENTS & RECEIPTS LIST

uche	Code	Date	Minute	Bank	Cheque No	Description	Supplier VA	т Туре	Net	VAT	Tot
63	Clerks Expenses	23/09/2024	KPC 130-04 17-9-24	Barclays - Kedington		Payment - Clerk's mileage	John Boxall Clerk	z	-21.60		-21.6
64	Asset Maintenance	23/09/2024	KPC 130-04 17-9-24	Barclays - Kedington		Payment - Play equipment repa	Playquip UK Ltd	s	-17.30	-3.46	-20.7
65	Email	25/09/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - TaikTaik email	TaikTaik	S	-4.17	-0.83	-5.0
69	Insurance	26/09/2024	KPC 130-04 17-9-24	Barclays - Kedington		Payment - Employers Liability I	Zurich Insurance	x	-1,671.56	-200.58	-1,872.1
67	Office Cleaning	26/09/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Office cleaning	Ana Lopes	z	-17.00		-17.0
66	Amenity Cleansing	26/09/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Dog bins emptying	West Suffolk Council	z	-1,494.51		-1,494.5
68	Legal Fees	26/09/2024	KPC 129-09 20-2-24 & KPC 1	Natwest Bank - Kedi		Payment - Legal Fees	Adept Property Lawyers	s	-230.00	-46.00	-276.0
71	Clerk Salary	30/09/2024	KPC 129-06 21-11-23 & KPC	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Wages John Boxall	John Boxall Clerk	z	-2,004.08		-2,004.0
72	Village Cleaner	30/09/2024	KPC 129-07 19-12-23 & KPC	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Wages Dennis Brow	Dennis Browniow - Village	Z	-146.44		-146.4
70	Telephone and Broadband	30/09/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Telephone and Broa	Onecom Ltd	s	-60.96	-12.19	-73.
73	Grounds, Contract A (Inc Churc	04/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24 & KPC 1	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Grass cutting & hed;	M D Landscapes (Anglia) I	J S	-742.56	-148.51	-891.0
73	Grounds, Contract B (Old Sch F	04/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24 & KPC 1	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Grass cutting & hed	M D Landscapes (Anglia) I	l S	-75.86	-15.17	-91.0
73	Grounds, Contract E (Great Mes	04/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24 & KPC 1	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Grass cutting & hed;	M D Landscapes (Anglia) I	3 5	-121.38	-24.28	-145.6
73	Grounds, Contract D (Calford G	04/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24 & KPC 1	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Grass cutting & hed	M D Landscapes (Anglia) I	J S	-45.52	-9.10	-54.6
73	Grounds - Extras	04/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24 & KPC 1	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Grass cutting & hed	M D Landscapes (Anglia) I	15	-195.00	-39.00	-234.0
74	Grounds - Strimming	04/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24 & KPC 1	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Strimming	M D Landscapes (Anglia) I	J S	-336.00	-67.20	-403.2
75	Website	07/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - Website	Suffolk.Cloud	z	-120.00		-120.0
5	Reclaimed VAT	08/10/2024	KPC 130-05 15-10-24	Barclays - Kedington		Receipt - VAT Reclaimed	HMRC	R		1,096.68	1,096.6
76	Clerk Salary	10/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - HMRC Payment	HMRC	z	-1,988.76		-1,988.7
76	Village Cleaner	10/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - HMRC Payment	HMRC	z	-109.80		-109.8
76	National Insurance Contribution	10/10/2024	KPC 129-08 16-1-24	Barclays - Kedington	Routine Payment/C	Payment - HMRC Payment	HMRC	z	-790.32		-790.3
							Total		-10.192.82	530.36	-9,662.44

Crementary []]]Scribe

99

11 October 2024 (2024-2025)

1 of 1

11 October 2024 (2024-2025)

Kedington Parish Council Net Position by Cost Centre and Code

Cost Centre Name

ninistration			Receipts	Paymer		Current Balance
Code Title	Bal, B/Fwd,	Budget	Actual	Budget	Actual	Budget
7 Clerks Expenses				100.00	21.60	78.
8 Counciliors Expenses				50.00		50.
9 Clerks and Councilor Trait				1,000.00	180.00	820.
10 Insurance				2,000.00	1,671.56	328
11 Scribe Accountants Softwa				561.60	561.60	
16 Website 38 Subscriptions				130.00 710.00	120.00	10.
50 Dropbox				80.00	003.03	
54 Audit				655.00	655.00	~
55 Electricity				1,000.00		1,000
56 Telephone and Broadband				700.00	365.76	334
57 Post				20.00		20
58 Stationery				175.00	262.42	-87
60 Email				175.00	25.02	149
61 Office Cleaning				250.00	85.00	165
67 Shared Office Costs with F				360.00		360
72 TV Licence				169.50		169
73 Portable Appliance Testing				180.00		180
				8,316.10	£4,617.79	3,698
st Register			Receipts	Paymer	vts.	Current Balance
Code Title	Bal. B/Fwd.	Budget	Actual	Budget	Aotual	Budget
39 Community Asset						
40 Infrastructure Asset						
41 Vehicle, Plant, Furniture E						
Code Trile	Bal. B/Fwd.	Budget	Receipts Actual	Paymer	Aotual	Current Balance Budget
Code Title	bal birwu	En ager	Hotaa	Couger	Hotaa	Budget
48 War Memorial						
49 Recreation Equipment						
63 Legal Fees					230.00	-230
64 Training 71 Elections						
71 Elections						
					£230.00	-230
eral Parich Requirements			Receipts	Paymer		Current Balance
Code Title	Bal. B/Fwd.	Budget	Actual	Budget	Actual	Budget
46 Asset Maintenance				4,000.00	624.47	3,375
59 Pest Control				600.00	600.00	
74 D-DAY 80				1,000.00	973.90	26
				6,800.00	£2,188.37	3,401
aral Recerves			Receipts	Payme		Current Balance
Code Title	Bal. B/Fwd.	Budget	Actual	Budget	Aotual	Budget
45 Reserve						
				Dataset		Current Balance
ts and Donations			Receipts	Payme		
ts and Donations	Bal. B/Fwd.	Budget	Aotual	Budget	Aotual	Budget
	Bal. B/Fwd.					
Code Title	Bal. B/Fwd.		Aotual	Budget	Aotual	Budget

Creates 57 []]] Scribe

Page 1

11 October 2024 (2024-2025)

Kedington Parish Council Net Position by Cost Centre and Code

Cost Centre Name

MRC VAT		Re	oelpts	Payme		Current Balance
Code Title	Bal, B/Fwd.	Budget	Actual	Budget	Actual	Budget
44 Reclaimed VAT						
RECEPT		Re	oelpts	Payme		Current Balance
Code Title	Bal, B/Fwd,	Budget	Actual	Budget	Actual	Budget
43 Precept			88,746.00			88,746.0
			£88,748.00			88,746.0
alary		Re	pelpts	Payme	nte	Current Balance
Code Title	Bal, B/Fwd,	Budget	Actual	Budget	Actual	Budget
1 Clerk Salary				33.684.00	18,087,90	15,596.1
3 Village Cleaner				2,300.00	1,198.24	1,101.7
4 National Insurance Contrib				3,400.00	2,370.96	1,029.0
				39,384.00	£21,867.10	17,728.8
Illage Maintenance		Re	oelpts	Payme	nte	Current Balance
Code Title	Bal, B/Fwd.	Budget	Actual	Budget	Actual	Budget
20 Converte Contract & the C				8,910.72	4,455.36	4,455.3
20 Grounds, Contract A (Inc C						
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old)				910.35	455.16	
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Great				1,456.56	728.28	728.2
21 Grounds, Contract B (Oid) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Gret 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calf)				1,456.56 546.21	728.28 273.12	728.2 273.0
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Grez 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calf) 25 Grounds - Extras				1,456.56 546.21 1,000.00	728.28 273.12 315.00	728.2 273.0 685.0
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Gree 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calh 25 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Strimming				1,456.56 546.21 1,000.00 2,520.00	728.28 273.12 315.00 2,352.00	728.2 273.0 685.0 168.0
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Gree 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calf) 25 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Strimming 28 Equipment New				1,456.56 546.21 1,000.00 2,520.00 1,000.00	728.28 273.12 315.00 2,352.00 98.90	728.2 273.0 685.0 168.0 901.1
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Gree 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calif 25 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Strimming 28 Equipment New 30 Contingencies / Sundries				1,456.56 546.21 1,000.00 2,520.00 1,000.00 500.00	728.28 273.12 315.00 2,352.00	728.2 273.0 665.0 168.0 901.1 158.7
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Gree 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calin 25 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Strimming 28 Equipment New 30 Contingencies / Sundries 31 Recreation Equipment				1,456.56 546.21 1,000.00 2,520.00 1,000.00 500.00 4,000.00	728.28 273.12 315.00 2,352.00 98.90	728.2 273.0 685.0 168.0 901.1 158.7 4,000.0
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Gree 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calh 25 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Strimming 28 Equipment New 30 Contingencies / Sundries 31 Recreation Equipment 32 War Memorial				1,456.56 546.21 1,000.00 2,520.00 1,000.00 500.00 4,000.00 200.00	728.28 273.12 315.00 2,352.00 98.90 341.30	728.2 273.0 685.0 901.1 158.7 4,000.0 200.0
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Gree 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calif 25 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Extras 28 Equipment New 30 Contingencies / Sundries 31 Recreation Equipment 32 War Memorial 33 Tree Maintenance				1,456,56 545,21 1,000,00 2,520,00 1,000,00 500,00 4,000,00 200,00 3,000,00	728.28 273.12 315.00 2,352.00 98.90 341.30	728.2 273.0 685.0 901.1 158.7 4,000.0 2000.0 2,770.0
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract D (Calif 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calif 25 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Strimming 28 Equipment New 30 Contingencies / Sundries 31 Recreation Equipment 32 War Memorial 33 Tree Maintenance 35 Amenity Cleansing				1,456,56 545,21 1,000,00 2,520,00 1,000,00 4,000,00 200,00 3,000,00 6,300,00	728.28 273.12 315.00 2,352.00 98.90 341.30	455.1 728.2 2730.6 685.0 901.1 158.7 4,000.0 200.0 2,770.0 3,310.9
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract E (Gree 23 Grounds, Contract D (Calif) 25 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Strimming 28 Equipment New 30 Contingencies / Sundries 31 Recreation Equipment 32 War Memorial 33 Tree Maintenance				1,456,56 545,21 1,000,00 2,520,00 1,000,00 500,00 4,000,00 2,000,00 3,000,00	728.28 273.12 315.00 2,352.00 98.90 341.30	728.2 273.0 685.0 901.1 158.7 4,000.0 200.0 2,770.0 3,310.5 1.0
21 Grounds, Contract B (Old) 22 Grounds, Contract D (Cali 25 Grounds, Contract D (Cali 25 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Extras 26 Grounds - Strimming 28 Equipment New 30 Contingencies / Bundries 31 Recreation Equipment 32 War Memorial 33 Tree Maintenance 35 Amenity Cleansing 68 The Cut Peppercorn Rent				1,456,55 545,21 1,000,00 2,520,00 1,000,00 200,00 3,000,00 6,300,00 1,00	728.28 273.12 315.00 2,352.00 98.90 341.30	728.2 273.0 685.0 901.1 158.7 4,000.0 2000.0 2,770.0

Current Balance = Balance B/Fwd - (Receipt Budget - Actual Receipt) + (Payment Budget - Actual Payments)

Casterly []]] Scribe

11 October 2024 (2024-2025)

Kedington Parish Council Reserves Balance 2024-2025

Reserve	OpeningBalance	Transfers	Spend	Receipts	CurrentBalance
Capital					
General Reserves	62,130.48	11,162.25			73,292.73
Total Capital	62,130.48	11,162.25			73,292.73
Earmarked					
Recreation Equipment	1,314.90	4,000.00			5,314.90
War Memorial	728.00	200.00			928.00
Legal Fees	4,000.00		230.00		3,770.00
Training	300.00				300.00
Elections	2,918.09				2,918.09
Total Earmarked	9,260.99	4,200.00	230.00		13,230.99
TOTAL RESERVE	71.391.47	15,362,25	230.00		86,523,72
	11,331.47	13,302.23	230.00		
GENERAL FUND					44,457.75
TOTAL FUNDS					130,981.47

Crowder []]] Scribe

Page No. 1